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TimothyKelley
Vice President,RegulatoryServices
TotalPeakingServices
SouthemConnecticutGasCompany
855Main Street
Bridgeport,Connecticut06604
Re: CPFNo.1-2005-3003
DearMr. Kelley:
Enclosedis theFinal Orderissuedby theAssociateAdministratorfor PipelineSafetyin the
a civil penaltyof $30,000.The
case.It makesfindingsofviolation andassesses
above-referenced
actionclosesautomatically
penaltypayment
termsaresetforthin theFinalOrder.Thisenforcement
documentunder49 C.F.R.
of
tha.t
service
constitutes
Your receiptof theFinal Order
uponpa-yment.
6190.5.
Sincerely,

'l

l,-

tn

JamesReynolds
PipelineComplianceRegistry
Office of PipelineSafetY
Enclosure

DEPARTMENTOF TRANSPORTATION
PIPELINEAND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION
OFFICEOF PIPELINESAFETY
WASHINGTON,DC 20590

In the Matterof
TotalPeakingSelices,

CPFNo. 1-2005-3003

Respondent.

FINAL ORDER
of the
BefweenAugust 23 and September8,2004, pursuant49 U.S.C. $ 60117, a representative
Stateof ConnecticutDepartmentof Public Utilify Control, asagentfor the Office of Pipeline Safety
(OPS) conductedan on-site pipeline safetyinspectionof Respondent'sfacilities andrecordsof the
TPS LNG facility in Milford, Connecticut. As a result of the inspection, the Director, Eastern
Region, OPS, issuedto Respondent,by letter datedMarch 7, 2005, a Notice of ProbableViolation
and ProposedCivil Penalty. In accordancewith 49 C.F.R. $ 190.207,the Notice proposedfinding
that Respondenthad violated 49 C.F.R. $ 193.2619and proposed assessinga civil penalty of
$45,000 for the allegedviolation.
Respondentrespondedto the Notice by letter datedMay 10,2005 (Response).Respondentdid not
contestthe allegationsofviolation but offered an explanationand requestedthat the proposedcivil
penaltybe reduced. Respondentdid not requesta hearing,and thereforehas waived its right to one.
FIND]NGS OF VIOLATION
Ir its Response,Respondentdid not contestthe allegedviolation in the Notice. Accordingly, I find
that Respondentviolated the following sectionof 49 C.F.R.Part 193, as more fully describedin the
Notice:

shutoff controllersat the three
49 C.F.R.$ 193,2619- failing to testits low-temperature
vaporizeroutletsbeforeuseeachseason.
action
enforcement
This finding of violationwill be considereda prior offensein any subsequent
takenagainstRespondent.

o

ASSESSMENTOF PENALTY
Under49 U.S.C.$ 60122,Respondent
is subjectto a civil penaltynot to exceed$100,000per
violationfor eachday of the violation up to a maximumof $1,000,000for any relatedseriesof
violations.
49 U.S.C.S 60122and49 C.F.R.$ 190.225requirethat,in determiningthe amountof the civil
penalty,I considerthefollowing criteria:nature,circumstalces,andgravityof theviolation,degree
prior offenses,Respondent's
ability to paythe
of Respondent's
culpability,historyof Respondent's
penalty,goodfaith by Respondent
in attemptingto achievecompliance,the effecton Respondent's
abilityto continuein business,andsuchothermattersasjusticemay require.
TheNoticeproposeda tota.lcivil penaltyof $45,000for violationof $ 193.2619.
In its Response,
Respondent
did not contestthe violation. However,Respondentdid explainthat
p.2)
it "did not operateany of the vaporizersduring the 2001-02heatingseason." (Response,
asallegedin theNotice.
Therefore,
it wasnot in compliancefor only two seasons,
not threeseasons
Basedon this explanation,Respondent
requested
a reductionin the fine. Id.
I agreethat $ 193.2619requiresseasonaltestingonly ifthe control systemis beingusedin that
criteriaandthe new
season.Accordingly,havingreviewedthe record,consideredthe assessment
informationpresented
in Respondent's
Response
to theNotice,I will reducethe civil penaltyfrom
to $30,000.
$45,000
Paymentof thecivil penaltymustbemadewithin 20 daysof service.Federalregulations(49 C.F.R.
$ 89.21(bX3))require this palnnentbe made by wire transfer,tlrough the FederalReserve
Communications
System(Fedwire),to the accountof theU.S. Treasury.Detailedinsfiuctionsare
containedin the enclosure.Questionsconcerningwire transfersshouldbe directedto: Financial
Division (AMZ-120),FederalAviationAdministration,Mike MonroneyAeronautical
Operations
P.O.Box 25082,OklahomaCity,OK 73125;(405)954-8893.
Center,
Failureto paythe $30,000civil penaltywill resultin accrualof interestat the currentannualratein
to thosesame
with 31U.S.C.* 3717,31C.F.R.$ 901.9and49 C.F.R.$ 89.23.Pursuant
accordance
payrnent
is not
authorities,a latepenaltychargeof six percent(6%) per annumwill be chargedif
penalty
result
in
referral
pay
may
the
civil
to
failure
Furthermore,
madewithin 110 daysof service.
actionin a United StatesDistrict Court.
of thematterto the AttorneyGeneralfor appropriate
of this
hasa right to submita Petitionfor Reconsideration
Under49 C.F.R.$ 190.215,Respondent
receipt
of
this
Final
Final Order. The petition must be receivedwithin 20 daysof Respondent's
Orderandmustccntaina brief statementof the issue(s).The filing of thepetitionallomatically
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staysthepaymentof anycivil penaltyassessed.
submitspaymentfor the
Howeverif Respondent
civil penalty,theFinal Orderbecomesthe final administrativedecisionandtheright to petitionfor
reconsideration
is waived. The termsandconditionsof this Final Orderareeffectiveon receipt.
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